
1 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

UPLAND PLANNING COMMISSION 

AGENDA 

November 13, 2019 at 6:30 PM 
Council Chambers 

ROBIN ASPINALL, CHAIR 

GARY SCHWARY, VICE CHAIR 

CAROLYN ANDERSON, COMMISSIONER 
LINDEN BROUSE, COMMISSIONER 

ALEXANDER NOVIKOV, COMMISSIONER 
YVETTE WALKER, COMMISSIONER 

VACANT, COMMISSIONER 

CALL TO ORDER OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL OF THE PLANNING      Chair Aspinall, Vice Chair Schwary, Commissioners 

COMMISSION Anderson, Brouse, Novikov and Walker 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES September 25, 2019 

COUNCIL ACTIONS Robert D. Dalquest, Development Services Director  

October 1, 2019, October 14, 2019, October 28, 2019 

and November 11, 2019  

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS Mike Poland, Contract Planning Manager 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

This is the time for any citizen to comment on any items that are not listed on the agenda under 

“Public Hearings” but within the Planning Commission’s purview. Anyone wishing to address the 

Planning Commission should submit a speaker card to the Planning Secretary prior to speaking. 

The speakers are requested to keep their comments to five (5) minutes. The use of visual aids will 

be included in the time limit. Under the provisions of the Brown Act, the Planning Commission is 

prohibited from taking action on items not listed on the agenda. 



2 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. PUBLIC HEARING FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. CUP 19-06.
The proposed project is requesting approval to establish a new restaurant, La Tapatia, with

a Type 41 ABC License (On-Sale Beer and Wine) along with outdoor seating.

Project location: 152 W. Foothill Blvd., APN: 1046-051-79.

STAFF: Jacqueline Hong, Assistant Planner 

APPLICANT: 

Luz De La O 

17490 Arrow Blvd. 

Fontana, CA 92335 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Planning Commission: 

1. Receive staff’s presentation;

2. Hold a public hearing and receive testimony from the

public;

3. Find that the project is Categorically Exempt from further

environmental proceedings pursuant to Article 19,

Section 15301, Existing Facilities of the California

Environmental Quality Act Guidelines; and

4. Move to adopt a Resolution approving Conditional Use

Permit No. 19-06, subject to conditions of approval as set

forth in the Draft Resolution dated November 13, 2019.

COUNCIL HEARING 

REQUIRED: 
No 

APPEAL PERIOD: 10 days, ending November 25, 2019. 

2. PUBLIC HEARING FOR LOCAL REGISTER (LR-19-01).
The proposed project is requesting to designate 111 W. 17th Street to the local register of

historic places.  The property is within the Single-Family Residential Low (0-4 du/ac, SRF-

L) General Plan Designation and Single-Family Residential RS-10,000 (RS-10) zone.

Project location: 111 W. 17th Street, APN: 1044-351-21.

STAFF: Joshua Winter, Associate Planner 

APPLICANT: 

Matthew Saul  

111 W. 17th Street 

Upland, CA 91784 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Planning Commission: 

1. Receive staff’s presentation;

2. Hold a public hearing and receive testimony from the

public;

3. Find that the project is Categorically Exempt from further

environmental proceedings pursuant to Article 5, Section

15061(b)(3). The activity is covered by the general rule

that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential

for causing a significant effect on the environment; and



3 

BUSINESS ITEMS - none 

COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 

ADJOURNMENT 

Adjourn to the next regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting on December 11, 2019. 

NOTICE TO PUBLIC: All maps, environmental information, and other data pertinent to this item are filed in the City of 
Upland Development Services Department and will be available for public inspection prior to the meeting at 460 North 
Euclid Avenue during normal business hours. 

If you wish to appeal a decision of the Planning Commission, you must do so within ten (10) calendar days following the 
meeting. Please contact the Planning Division for information regarding the appeal procedure.  

If you challenge the public hearing(s) or the related environmental determinations, in court, you may be limited to raising 
only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence 
delivered to the City of Upland, at or prior to, the public hearing.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact the Planning Division at 931-4305. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make 
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. [28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II] 

POSTING STATEMENT:  On November 7, 2019, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting, a true and correct copy of this 
agenda was posted on the bulletin boards at 460 N. Euclid Avenue (Upland City Hall) and 450 N. Euclid Avenue (Upland 
Public Library) per Government Code Section 54954.2. 

4. Move to adopt a Resolution approving Local Register No.

19-01, subject to conditions of approval as set forth in the

Draft Resolution dated November 13, 2019.

COUNCIL HEARING 

REQUIRED: 
No 

APPEAL PERIOD: 10 days, ending November 25, 2019. 



Page 1 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
UPLAND PLANNING COMMISSION HELD 

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2019 
AT 6:30 P.M. 

CALL TO ORDER OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

Chair Aspinall called the Regular Meeting of the Upland Planning Commission to order in the Council Chambers of 
the Upland City Hall at 6:30 P.M. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The pledge of allegiance was led by Commissioner Walker. 

ROLL CALL 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Commissioners Anderson, Brouse, Novikov, Walker, Vice Chair Schwary, and 
Chair Aspinall 

MEMBERS ABSENT: None 

ALSO PRESENT: Development Services Director and Secretary Dalquest, Contract Planning 
Manager Poland, Associate Planner Winter, Assistant Planner Hong, Senior 
Administrative Assistant Davidson, Deputy City Attorney Shah 

PRESENTATIONS 

Development Services Director Dalquest presented past Chair Schwary with a gift from the Planning Division staff 
in gratitude for his service as Planning Commission Chair over the past eight (8) years.   

Contract Planning Manager Poland thanked past Chair Schwary for being a pleasure to work with over the years.  

Vice Chair Schwary thanked staff and his fellow Commissioners for all of their hard work.  

On behalf of the Planning Commission, Development Services Director Dalquest presented outgoing Commissioner 
Verrinder with a plaque in recognition of her eight (8) years of service on the Commission.  

Vice Chair Schwary thanked outgoing Commissioner Verrinder for her service to the Planning Commission.   

Shelly Verrinder thanked staff and her fellow Commissioners.  She wished the Commissioners well in the future.  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Chair Aspinall requested the minutes be amended to clarify points made by Commissioner Novikov on page 3 with 
regards to the election.  

Moved by Commissioner Anderson, to approve of the minutes of the Planning Commission meeting of August 28, 
2019, as amended by Chair Aspinall.  

The motion was seconded by Vice Chair Schwary.  

The motion carried by the following vote:  

AYES:    Commissioners Anderson, Brouse, Novikov, Walker, Vice Chair Schwary, and Chair Aspinall 



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
UPLAND PLANNING COMMISSION        SEPTEMBER 25, 2019 

Page 2 

NAYS:  None  ABSTAINED:  None 

ABSENT: None 

COUNCIL ACTIONS  

Development Services Director Dalquest provided a brief follow up on the September 9th City Council Meeting, 
noting that a presentation on the 2020 Census was provided; indicated the City Council appointed Howard Bunte to 
the Airport and Land Use Committee; and approved a contract with a consultant, Tierra West Advisors, for economic 
development services and strategic plan services.  He also indicated there were no Commission-related items 
discussed at the September 23rd City Council Meeting.   

FUTURE AGENDAS 

Contract Planning Manager Poland indicated that there is nothing currently scheduled for the October meeting, 
however there is business to discuss at the meeting of November 13th.   

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

Chair Aspinall  stated this is the time for any citizen to comment on any items that are not listed on the agenda under 
“Public Hearings” but within the Planning Commission’s purview.  Anyone wishing to address the Planning 
Commission should submit a speaker card to the Planning Secretary prior to speaking. The speakers are requested to 
keep their comments to five (5) minutes. The use of visual aids will be included in the time limit. Under the provisions 
of the Brown Act, the Planning Commission is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the agenda.   

Steve Bierbaum spoke about the joint workshop of the City Council, Planning Commission and Airport and Land 
Use Committee meeting of June 17th, and spoke about the proposed development in question, including recycled 
materials, administrative citations issues, settlement agreement, and encouraged the Commission to have an EIR 
prepared for any future projects at the location.   

Vice Chair Schwary inquired as to whether there will be another workshop before the Commission or Council votes 
on the item. 

In response to Vice Chair Schwary’s inquiry, Development Services Director Dalquest confirmed, indicating a 
potential joint workshop may he held in October 2019. 

Noting there were no further members of the public wishing to address the Commission, Chair Aspinall closed the 
oral communications.   

PUBLIC HEARINGS – None. 

BUSINESS ITEMS 

1. UPDATE AND STATUS REPORT OF PREVIOUSLY APPROVED CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT
NO. 11-05 FOR THE EVENT TENT AND LANDSCAPING MAINTENANCE ISSUES AT THE
UPLAND HILLS COUNTRY CLUB (MIKE POLAND).

Contract Planning Manager Poland spoke about the history of the item, current status, events within the past 90 
days, noise complaint filed, police report, ADA compliance issues and remedies, other complaints and association 
issues, and staff recommendations.  

Commissioner Walker requested clarification related to the maintenance of the landscape, nature of landscape 
complaints, and inquired whether a report will be coming to the Commission. 

In response to Commissioner Walker’s inquiry, Contract Planning Manager Poland indicated that the property 
management company hired an arborist to mitigate issues related to trees.  

Vice Chair Schwary requested staff further explore landscape issues and report back to the Commission.  He also 



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
UPLAND PLANNING COMMISSION        SEPTEMBER 25, 2019 

Page 3 

inquired as to the volume of complaints. 

In response to Vice Chair Schwary’s inquiry, Contract Planning Manager Poland indicated there has been one (1) 
complaint over the past 12-months.   

The Planning Commission received and filed the report.  

PUBLIC WORKSHOP 

1. PUBLIC WORKSHOP ON A DRAFT ORDINANCE REGULATING ACCESSORY DWELLING
UNITS FOR COMPLIANCE WITH RECENT CHANGES TO STATE LAW; STATE GOVERNMENT
CODE SECTION 65852.2 (ROBERT D. DALQUEST).

Development Services Director Dalquest presented the details of the item to the Commission, including the history 
of the item, Government Code, public notification, accessory dwelling unit (“ADU”) definition, forms of ADU’s, 
legislative history, summary of significant changes, parking requirements, key policy issues previously discussed, 
and staff recommendation.   

Deputy City Attorney Shah spoke about the status of current legislation, draft ordinances, and scenarios for action 
provided the passing or vetoing of the current legislation.  

Development Services Director Dalquest spoke about next steps for the draft ordinance and indicated that the current 
code is out of compliance; as such, current applications are determined by state guidelines.  

Chair Aspinall inquired as to the current compliance of ADU over the past two (2) years. 

In response to Chair Aspinall’s inquiry, Development Services Director Dalquest indicated that each application 
would have to be reviewed on a case-by-case basis, noting an average of ten (10) applications per year.  He also 
defined the “legal non-conforming” status.    

Commissioner Anderson inquired as to the number of ADU’s in the City in accordance with the City’s Housing 
Element.   

In response to Commissioner Anderson’s inquiry, Development Services Director Dalquest indicated he would look 
into it and include the information in the public hearing. 

Development Services Director Dalquest continued the presentation by highlighting key points in the draft ordinance. 

Commissioner Walker inquired as to the impact legal non-conforming ADU’s will have on meeting the numbers 
indicated in the City’s Housing Element.   

In response to Commissioner Walker’s inquiry, Development Services Director Dalquest indicated that the status 
will be beneficial to the goal of meeting housing numbers.  

Vice Chair Schwary inquired as to short-term rentals with existing ADU’s. 

In response to Vice Chair Schwary’s inquiry, Development Services Director Dalquest indicated as the code stands 
now, there is no policy on short-term vacation rentals in the City.   

Discussion ensued related to the possibility of the state to allow vacation rentals in ADU’s should legislation pass in 
the future.  

Commissioner Anderson inquired as to any restrictions related to room rental within owner-occupied dwellings. 

In response to Commissioner Anderson’s inquiry, Deputy City Attorney Shah indicated there is no such restriction in 
the City.  

Commissioner Novikov inquired as to the impact of potentially allowing short-term rentals of ADU’s. 



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
UPLAND PLANNING COMMISSION        SEPTEMBER 25, 2019 

Page 4 

In response to Commissioner Novikov’s inquiry, Development Services Director Dalquest indicated the single-family 
nature of the zoning areas for ADU’s can generate complaints from short-term rentals. 
Commissioner Walker also indicated that short-term rentals could have the potential to affect surrounding property 
values and appreciates the long-term rental.  She also inquired as to state incentives to promote the development of 
ADU’s.  

In response to Commissioner Walker’s inquiry, Development Services Director Dalquest indicated that taking away 
local control on certain issues provides an easier path for the development of ADU’s. 

Deputy City Attorney Shah indicated that the state is currently considering legislation that can limit fees passed down 
to property owners for the development of ADU’s.   

Chair Aspinall inquired as to the likelihood of ADU approvals coming before the Planning Commission. 

In response to Chair Aspinall’s inquiry, Development Services Director Dalquest indicated that appeals of 
administrative decisions can potentially come before the Planning Commission.  

Commissioner Anderson inquired as to the requirement for garages should existing garages be converted to ADU’s.  

In response to Commissioner Anderson’s inquiry, Development Services Director Dalquest indicated that the code 
required covered parking, as such, a garage or carport are required.   

Discussion ensued regarding setback requirements.   

Vice Chair Schwary expressed support for more restrictive setback requirements with regards to ADU’s. 

Chair Aspinall inquired as to the requirement for public notification.   

In response to Chair Aspinall’s inquiry, Development Services Director Dalquest indicated that there is no legal 
requirement to notify neighbors, as ADU’s are administrative approvals.  

Commissioner Novikov requested clarification on ADU parking requirements. 

In response to Commissioner Novikov’s inquiry, Development Services Director Dalquest indicated 2017 legislation 
required one (1) space per bedroom, and in 2018 legislation was updated to require one (1) space per ADU.   

Discussion ensued related to the public transit radius provision, car share vehicle location provision, and parking 
restrictions around the City.  

Chair Aspinall inquired as to any streets that require parking permits for street parking. 

In response to Chair Aspinall’s inquiry, Development Services Director Dalquest indicated there might be some near 
the high school but would need to verify with code enforcement. 

Chair Aspinall requested that staff include this information when the draft ordinance is brought forward to the 
Commission.  

Commissioner Walker expressed interest in reviewing potential parking studies when drafting the ordinance, and 
expressed concern for parking along the streets. 

In response to Commissioner Walker’s inquiry, Development Services Director Dalquest indicated he could provide 
a half mile radius map to the Commission and was not certain about a Parking Study. He also indicated that we would 
have to allow it, since it is state law. 

Deputy City Attorney Shah indicated that there is potential for further restriction down the line regarding defining 
parking restrictions in relation to ADU’s.  



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
UPLAND PLANNING COMMISSION        SEPTEMBER 25, 2019 

Page 5 

Development Services Director Dalquest indicated there could be health and safety concerns pertaining to emergency 
access. 

Chair Aspinall opened the floor to public comment.  

Kirk Swanner spoke about the RS-7.5 zone and finds it restrictive since it prohibits lot sizes under 7,500 square feet 
from being able to have ADU’s.  

In response to Kirk Swanner’s inquiry, Development Services Director Dalquest indicated that lot size restrictions 
are policy decisions made at the discretion of the Commission and finds ADU’s to be accommodating. He further 
mentions needing to make sure ADU’s are integrated in neighborhoods where they won’t cause an impact. 

Development Services Director Dalquest suggested he could provide GIS or County Assessors lot information, to 
inform the Commission of how many lots exist within the City that are less than 7,500 square feet. 

Vice Chair Schwary inquired as to the option for applicants with properties under the size threshold in certain zones 
to apply for a variance in lieu of changing the lot size restrictions.  

In response to Vice Chair Schwary’s inquiry, Development Services Director Dalquest indicated that applicants will 
still have to meet state requirements for a variance. He also mentioned the City cannot grant special privileges and a 
special circumstance would need to be present to consider a variance. 

Mr. Swanner indicated that he feels a significant amount of properties fall under the 7,500 square foot lot size 
threshold. 

Development Services Director Dalquest indicated that as it stands, the City is taking a more accommodating stance 
by permitting 7,500 square foot properties to build ADU’s, when the previous minimum was 10,000 square feet.   

Vice Chair Schwary requested staff look into allowing reasonable accommodations to permit property owners under 
7,500 square feet to build ADU’s.  

Deputy City Attorney Shah recommended lowering the lot size requirements should the ADU be attached. 

Tom Grahn expressed support for the Commission’s actions on this topic, however indicated that his neighbor is 
currently building an ADU which exceeds size restrictions.  

In response to Tom Grahn’s comment, Development Services Director Dalquest indicated that prior to this 
Ordinance, the City had no ADU ordinance and was instead using state guidelines.  Development Services Director 
Dalquest offered to look in to the specifics of Mr. Grahn’s claim. 

Mr. Grahn replied that the property is at 1341 N. First Avenue and indicated the house is around 2,000 square feet 
and the ADU is 1,200 square feet including the conversion of a 400 square foot garage. 

Discussion ensued related to second-story ADU’s, impact to the community, and limitations in surrounding cities.  

Chair Aspinall requested that staff clarify state requirements with respect to ADU sizes and lot sizes.    

Sean Hoss spoke about setbacks for ADU’s with regards to loss of privacy.   

Development Services Director Dalquest proposed adding provisions for detached ADU setbacks when properties 
are adjacent to alleyways.   

Noting no others wishing to address the Commission, Chair Aspinall closed oral communications. 

Vice Chair Schwary thanked those who came to the meeting and provided commentary. 

Commissioner Anderson thanked everyone for coming and appreciated their feedback. She also indicated she is 
excited to have an ADU ordinance within the City. 



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
UPLAND PLANNING COMMISSION        SEPTEMBER 25, 2019 

Page 6 

Vice Chair Schwary inquired as to the next steps. 

In response to Vice Chair Schwary’s inquiry, Development Services Director Dalquest spoke briefly about the next 
steps, including other department’s review and setting the public hearing.    

COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 

Commissioner Walker inquired as to tree trimming within the City. 

In response to Commissioner Walker’s comment, Development Services Director Dalquest indicated tree trimming 
is under the jurisdiction of Public Works and he will follow up and with the Commission.  

Chair Aspinall inquired as to the status of short-term rentals in the City. 

In response to Chair Aspinall’s comment, Development Services Director Dalquest indicated that there is currently 
no policy that addresses short-term or vacation rentals in the City.  

Chair Aspinall requested a discussion on short-term rentals be agendized at a future meeting. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Planning Commission, Chair Aspinall adjourned the meeting at 
8:26 P.M., to the regular meeting of the Planning Commission on November 13, 2019, at 6:30 P.M. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Robert D. Dalquest, Secretary 
Upland Planning Commission 



PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 

ITEM NO. 1 

DATE: NOVEMBER 13, 2019 

TO: PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: ROBERT D. DALQUEST, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 

PREPARED BY: JACQUELINE HONG, ASSISTANT PLANNER 

SUBJECT: REQUEST FOR A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT (CUP-19-06) TO 
ALLOW THE SALE OF BEER AND WINE, (TYPE 41 LICENSE), 
ALONG WITH OUTDOOR PATIO SEATING, IN CONJUNCTION 
WITH A PROPOSED RESTAURANT (LA TAPATIA) LOCATED 
WITHIN THE COMMERCIAL/ RESIDENTIAL-MIXED USE 
ZONE, AT 152 W. FOOTHILL BLVD. UNIT A AND B, FURTHER 
DESCRIBED AS ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NO. 1046-051-79.   

REQUEST/SUMMARY: 

The applicant is requesting an Alcohol Beverage Control (ABC) Type 41 License to 
authorize the sale of beer and wine consumption on the licensee’s premises, along 
with outdoor seating in conjunction with a proposed restaurant (La Tapatia) located 
at 152 W. Foothill Blvd. 

A Type 41 License authorizes the sale of beer and wine for consumption on or off the 
premises where sold. Distilled spirits may not be on the premises (except brandy, 
rum, or liqueurs for use solely for cooking purposes). The business must operate and 
maintain the licensed premises as a restaurant. The business must maintain suitable 
kitchen facilities, and must make actual and substantial sales of meals for 
consumption on the premises. Minors are allowed on the premises.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

Adopt Planning Commission Resolution entitled: 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
UPLAND, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING AN EXEMPTION PURSUANT 

Page 1 of 27



TO SECTION 15301(E), EXISTING FACILITIES, OF THE 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) 
GUIDELINES FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 19-06, AND 
APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 19-06 FOR THE 
SALE OF BEER AND WINE (TYPE 41 LICENSE), ALONG WITH 
OUTDOOR PATIO SEATING AT LA TAPATIA'S WITHIN THE 
COMMERCIAL/ RESIDENTIAL MIXED-USE ZONE LOCATED AT 152 
W. FOOTHILL BLVD UNIT A AND B. (ASSESSOR’S PARCEL 
NUMBER 1046-051-79). (EXHIBIT A) 
 

AUTHORIZATION/GUIDELINES: 
 
Upland Municipal Code (UMC) Section 17.44.040 authorizes the Planning Commission 
to review and take action on Conditional Use Permits for eating establishments with 
the sale of alcoholic beverages. 
 
PUBLIC NOTCE: 
 
In accordance with Upland Municipal Code (UMC) Section 17.46.020, on October 31, 
2019, the City sent a Public Hearing Notice to a total of 84 property owners within a 
300-foot radius of the project site. The Public Hearing Notice was also published in 
the Inland Valley Daily Bulletin on November 1, 2019 and posted in 2 physical 
locations on October 31, 2019. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 
 
Categorical Exemption: The proposed project is categorically exempt from the 
provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per State CEQA 
Guidelines 15301 (Class 1 – Existing Facilities) because the project consists of the 
operation and licensing of a restaurant in an existing private structure that does not 
expand the existing structure or the existing floor area. There is no environmental 
public review required for a Categorical Exemption. 
 
PROJECT BACKGROUND: 
 
Applicant: Luz De La O 
Representative: Same as Applicant 
Property Owner: M&A Gabaee 
Property Location: 152 W. Foothill Blvd. (Exhibit B) 
Existing General Plan Land 
Use Designation: 

Commercial/ Residential Mixed-Use C/R-MU 
 

Existing Zoning 
Classification: 

Commercial Residential Mixed Use C/R-MU 
 

Site Size:  14,970 square feet (0.34 Acres) 
Building/Suite Size: 3,495 square feet 
Access: N. Euclid Avenue and W. Foothill Blvd. 

Page 2 of 27



Existing Conditions: The business is located in a single story commercial 
building surrounded by similar commercial buildings 
representing a mix of retail, restaurant uses, and 
financial uses such as a bank. 

Surrounding Land Uses: Directly adjacent properties include a mix of retail, 
restaurant, and a bank use.  

Previous 
Applications/Entitlements: N/A 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
Alcohol Beverage Control Type 41 License  
 
The applicant proposes to serve beer and wine at a proposed restaurant (La Tapatia) 
under a State Alcohol and Beverage Control (ABC) Type 41 License. The tenant space 
is 3,495 square feet. Seating is being provided for 54 customers. The hours of 
operation are 8:00 am to 9:00 pm seven days a week. Photographs of the exterior 
and interior areas of the restaurant are included as Exhibit C. The subject site 
conforms to all applicable development standards for operation of a restaurant in the 
existing location.  
 
Development Standards  
 
No changes are proposed to the lot size, building square footage, building height, or 
parking. The previous land use of this tenant space was a restaurant. The proposed 
land use will continue to be a restaurant and is permitted by right within the 
Commercial Residential Mixed Use (C/R-MU) Zone. Staff conducted a parking analysis 
of the commercial center where the restaurant is located and determined that there 
is currently a surplus of 7 parking spaces, such that the proposed conditional use 
permit does not require any additional parking spaces be added to the property (see 
Exhibit D). 
 
APPLICATION REQUESTED/REQUIRED FINDINGS: 
 
In order to approve Conditional Use Permit 19-06, the Planning Commission is 
required to make findings related to the circumstances of the project. Section 2 of 
the Draft Resolution contains recommended findings for the Planning Commission’s 
consideration. These Findings include: 
 

1. The location, size, design, and operating characteristics of the proposed use 
will be compatible with the existing and future land uses in the vicinity of 
the subject property. 

2. The site is physically suitable in terms of design, location, shape, size, 
operating characteristics, and the provision of public and emergency vehicle 
(e.g., fire and medical) access and public services and utilities. 

Page 3 of 27



3. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, and
welfare of the persons residing or working in the neighborhood of the
proposed use.

ANALYSIS/STATEMENT OF ISSUES: 

Alcohol Beverage Control (ABC) Type 41 License 

Existing Licenses within 600 feet of the Site  

For information purposes, staff identified the following ABC authorized facilities selling 
alcoholic beverages that are located within a 600-foot proximity to the restaurant’s 
entrance. 

Existing Licenses 

Establishment Name License Type Address 
Maru Sushi 41 158 W. Foothill Blvd 
CVS Pharmacy 21 100 W. Foothill Blvd 
Cocos Restaurant Inc. 41 60 W. Foothill Blvd 
Kishi Japanese Restaurant 47 320 W. Foothill Blvd 
Wicked Cow Restaurants, Inc. 41 & 47 131 W. Foothill Blvd 
Vons Companies Inc. 21 81 W. Foothill Blvd 

License Type Description 

21 
OFF SALE GENERAL - (Package Store) Authorizes the sale of beer 
and wine for consumption off the premises where sold. Minors are 
allowed on the premises. 

41 

ON SALE BEER & WINE – EATING PLACE - (Restaurant) Authorizes 
the sale of beer and wine for consumption on or off the premises 
where sold. Distilled spirits may not be on the premises (except 
brandy, rum, or liqueurs for use solely for cooking purposes). Must 
operate and maintain the licensed premises as a bona fide eating 
place. Must maintain suitable kitchen facilities, and must make 
actual and substantial sales of meals for consumption on the 
premises. Minors are allowed on the premises. 

47 

ON SALE GENERAL – EATING PLACE - (Restaurant) Authorizes the 
sale of beer, wine and distilled spirits for consumption on the 
licenses premises. Authorizes the sale of beer and wine for 
consumption off the licenses premises. Must operate and maintain 
the licensed premises as a bona fide eating place. Must maintain 
suitable kitchen facilities, and must make actual and substantial 
sales of meals for consumption on the premises. Minors are allowed 
on the premises. 

Page 4 of 27



Sensitive Receptors  
 
As previously mentioned the Upland Municipal Code (UMC) requires a Conditional Use 
Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages to ensure there will be no adverse impact 
on surrounding land uses. The UMC does not establish a requirement for the 
separation of sensitive uses (i.e., park, school, day care etc.) in relation to on-site 
sales. The State Alcohol Beverage Control (ABC) Board investigation requires 
applicants to identify the sensitive land uses within 600 feet of the site. The only 
sensitive land use located within 600 feet of the existing restaurant is the First 
Presbyterian Preschool and First Presbyterian Church of Upland. These two 
establishments are located adjacent to the south of the proposed restaurant.  
 
Public Convenience and Necessity 
 
State law limits the number of alcohol licenses within each census tract, based on 
population within the census tract area and the ABC has the authority to deny an 
application for issuance of a license that could potentially create a law enforcement 
problem, however, bona fide restaurants are exempt from these limitations pursuant 
to Business and Professions Code Section 23958.4. Business and Professions 
Code Section 23958.4 provides exceptions permitting the issuance of an original 
license or transfer of a license to sell alcoholic beverages in an area which is over 
concentrated or where a crime problem exists, as provided in the statute. Applicants 
for certain licenses, as provided in the statute, including nonretail licenses, retail on-
sale at a bona fide eating place, licenses issued to hotels, beer manufacturers and 
wine growers, may provide a letter of public convenience or necessity directly to the 
State Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control.  
 
TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE 
 
The Technical Review Committee reviewed the Conditional Use Permit application, 
and recommended approval of the project subject to conditions of approval that have 
been incorporated into the draft resolution. The conditions of approval will ensure 
that the development meets all development standards within the Upland Municipal 
Code as required, and will ensure that the proposed use is compatible with the 
surrounding land uses. 
 
The Upland Police Department does not oppose the applicant’s request for a Type 41 
license. The restaurant is located in an area with a lower than average crime rate. 
Therefore, the Police Department does not anticipate that this business operation will 
have a negative impact on public safety resources.  
 
MOTION 
 

• Find that the project is Categorically Exempt from further environmental 
proceedings pursuant to Article 19, Section 15301, Existing Facilities, Class 1 
(a), of the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines. 

Page 5 of 27

http://www.qcode.us/codes/othercode.php?state=ca&code=buspro
http://www.qcode.us/codes/othercode.php?state=ca&code=buspro


• Move to adopt a Resolution approving Conditional Use Permit 19-06, subject 
to conditions of approval as set forth in the Draft Resolution dated November 
13, 2019. 

 
ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS 
 
Exhibit A: Draft Resolution 
Exhibit B: Vicinity Map  
Exhibit C: Photographs of Restaurant  
Exhibit D: Parking Analysis 

Page 6 of 27



 

 

Exhibit A  

Draft Resolution 

 

Page 7 of 27



RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
UPLAND, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING AN EXEMPTION PURSUANT 
TO SECTION 15301(E), EXISTING FACILITIES, OF THE 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) 
GUIDELINES FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 19-06, AND 
APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 19-06 FOR THE 
SALE OF BEER AND WINE (TYPE 41 LICENSE), ALONG WITH 
OUTDOOR PATIO SEATING AT LA TAPATIA'S WITHIN THE 
COMMERCIAL/ RESIDENTIAL MIXED-USE ZONE LOCATED AT 152 
W. FOOTHILL BLVD UNIT A AND B. (ASSESSOR’S PARCEL
NUMBER 1046-051-79).

WHEREAS, an application for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP No. 19-06) for 
the sale of beer and wine, along with outdoor patio seating in an new restaurant (La 
Tapatia) has been filed for the real property located at 152 W. Foothill Blvd Unit A 
and B, in the Commercial/ Residential Mixed-Use Zone, Assessor’s Parcel Number 
1046-051-79; and  

WHEREAS, the proposed Conditional Use Permit is considered a project as 
defined by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), Public Resources Code 
Section 21000 et seq.; and  

WHEREAS, the Development Services Director determined that the project 
qualifies for a Categorical Exemption from the provisions of CEQA per Section 
15301(e), Existing Facilities, of the CEQA Guidelines; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Upland Planning Division on October 31, 2019, posted 
two (2) true and correct copies of the legal notice at the Upland City Hall Bulletin 
Board and at the Upland Public Library in accordance with the Upland Municipal Code 
Section 17.46.020; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Upland Planning Division on October 31, 2019, mailed 
the public hearing notice to each property owner within a 300-foot radius of the 
project site indicating the date and time of the public hearing in compliance with state 
law concerning Conditional Use Permit No. 19-06; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Upland Planning Division on November 1, 2019, 
published a legal notice in the Inland Valley Daily Bulletin, a local paper of general 
circulation, indicating the date and time of the public hearing in compliance with state 
law concerning Conditional Use Permit No. 19-06; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Upland Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed 
public hearing on November 13, 2019, at which time it received public testimony 
concerning Conditional Use Permit No. 19-06, and considered the CEQA Exemption 
for the proposed project and the proposed Conditional Use Permit No. 19-06 to sell 
beer and wine, along with outdoor patio seating at La Tapatia; and  

Page 8 of 27



NOW, THEREFORE, the Planning Commission of the City of Upland does 
hereby resolve, determine, and order as follows:  

SECTION 1. ENVIRONMENTAL FINDINGS  

Pursuant to CEQA, within the meaning of Public Resources Code Sections 21080(e) 
and 21082.2 within the record and/or provided at the public hearing, the Planning 
Commission hereby finds and determines that the project was adequately analyzed 
according to the CEQA Guidelines and qualified for an Exemption under Section 
15301(e), Existing Facilities, as supported by the following Findings and Evidence:  

Finding:  The proposed project is exempt from further environmental review 
requirements contained in CEQA pursuant to Section 15301(e), Existing 
Facilities.  

Evidence:  The proposed project is categorically exempt from the provisions of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per State CEQA Guidelines 
15301 (Class 1 – Existing Facilities) because the project consists of the 
operation and licensing of a restaurant in an existing private structure 
that does not expand the existing structure or the existing floor area. 
There is no environmental public review required for a Categorical 
Exemption. 

SECTION 2. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FINDINGS  

Pursuant to the Upland Zoning Code, and in light of the record before it, including 
the Staff Report dated November 13, 2019, and all evidence and testimony heard at 
the public hearing of this item, the Planning Commission hereby finds and determines 
as follows:  

Finding 1:  The location, size, design, and operating characteristics of the proposed 
use will be compatible with the existing and future land uses in the 
vicinity of the subject property. 

Evidence: The location, size, design, and operating characteristics of the proposed 
use will be compatible with the existing and future land uses in the 
vicinity of the subject property in that the restaurant is located within 
an existing commercial building surrounded by other commercial uses. 
The tenant space provides adequate room for the operation of the 
restaurant and outdoor patio seating. Therefore, the use, as 
conditioned, will be compatible with the existing and future land uses in 
the vicinity of the subject property.    

 
Finding 2: The site is physically suitable in terms of design, location, shape, size, 

operating characteristics, and the provision of public and emergency 
vehicle (e.g., fire and medical) access and public services and utilities. 

 

Page 9 of 27



Evidence: The project site is physically suitable for the type of use being proposed 
in that the property was developed for a commercial use and a 
restaurant is a permitted use in the Commercial Residential Mixed Use 
Zone. The introduction of alcohol sales will be incidental to the 
restaurant use. No adverse impacts will be created to the surrounding 
neighborhood as the operation will be consistent with the recommended 
conditions of approval and the requirements of the State of California 
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control. The site provides adequate 
circulation and parking for the proposed use and access for emergency 
and public service vehicles. 

 
Finding 3: The proposed use will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, 

and welfare of the persons residing or working in the neighborhood of 
the proposed use. 

 
Evidence: The proposed use will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, 

and welfare of the persons residing or working in the neighborhood of 
the proposed use in that the project is in compliance with the zoning 
standards for the zone, the land use is consistent with surrounding uses 
and the conditions of approval applied to the use will ensure that the 
use operates in a manner that protects the public health, safety, and 
welfare of the surrounding neighborhood. 

  
SECTION 3. DETERMINATION.  In light of the evidence presented at the hearing 
on this application, and based on the findings set forth above, the Planning 
Commission hereby finds that the requirements necessary for the approval of a 
conditional use permit are present, and as such, approve Conditional Use Permit No. 
19-06 to sell beer and wine, along with outdoor patio seating at La Tapatia, subject 
to all applicable provisions of the Upland Municipal Code, and the following conditions 
of approval:  
 
10.  Development Services - General 

10.1 The applicant and recorded property owner of the property shall submit 
to the Development Services Department written evidence of agreement 
with all conditions of this approval before the approval becomes 
effective.  

 
10.2 Current and future property owners, business managers, operators, etc. 

shall be responsible for ensuring and complying with all conditions of 
approval contained herein. 

 
10.3 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Applicant shall indemnify, 

defend and hold the City, its elected officials, officers, contractors 
serving as City officers, agents, and employees (“Indemnitees”) free 

Page 10 of 27



and harmless from: (i) any and all claims, liabilities and losses 
whatsoever occurring or resulting to any and all persons, firms, entities, 
or corporations furnishing or supplying work, services, materials, or 
supplies in connection with, or related to, the performance of work or 
the exercise of rights authorized by approval of CUP-19-06 (Project); 
and (ii) any and all claims, lawsuits, liabilities, and/or actions arising out 
of, or related to the approval of this Project and/or the granting or 
exercise of the rights authorized by said approval; and (iii) from any and 
all claims, liabilities and losses occurring or resulting to any person, firm, 
entity, corporation for property damage, personal injury, or death, 
arising out of or related to the approval of, or exercise of rights granted 
by, this Project. Applicant's obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold 
the Indemnitees free and harmless as required hereinabove shall 
include, but is not limited to, paying all fees and costs incurred by legal 
counsel of the Indemnitees’ choice in representing the Indemnitees in 
connection with any such claims, losses, lawsuits, or actions, and any 
award of damages, judgments, verdicts, court costs or attorneys' fees 
in any such lawsuit or action. 

10.4 The applicant shall operate in accordance with approved plans and 
specifications on file with the City of Upland Development Services 
Department and shall be in compliance with all conditions of approval of 
Conditional Use Permit No. CUP-19-06, as approved by the Planning 
Commission on November 13, 2019.   

10.5 Prior to the start of operations (i.e., alcohol sales and the outdoor patio 
seating), there shall be implementation of the applicable conditions of 
approval as required by the City of Upland, to the satisfaction of the 
Development Services Director, Building Official, Public Works Director, 
Fire Chief, and Police Chief.  No final inspection or clearances shall be 
given until all conditions are met. Each condition of approval is 
separately enforced, and if one of the conditions of approval is found to 
be invalid by a court of law, all the other conditions shall remain valid 
and enforceable.  

10.6 The applicant or owner shall pay all applicable cost recovery fees to the 
Development Services Department and City of Upland development fees 
prior to issuance of any permits.   

10.7 The applicant and owner shall comply with all provisions for licensing 
and certification from the San Bernardino County Health Department 
prior to the start of operations. 

10.8 All current and future business owners shall have a valid business 
license to operate the restaurant.  

Page 11 of 27



10.9 The business shall comply with all of the conditions of approval that 
authorizes its operation. 

 
10.10 Prior to the start of operations any and all alarms installed on the 

premises shall require an alarm permit from the Finance Division. 
 

10.11 Expansion of use beyond the scope and nature described in this 
Conditional Use Permit No. 19-06 (CUP-19-06), which would increase 
the projected scale of operations, shall not be permitted except upon 
application for and approval of modification to this Conditional Use 
Permit.   

 
20.0  Development Services - Use Conditions 

 
20.1 All uses allowed by the conditional use permit shall be conducted 

indoors, within the approved tenant space and within the designated 
outdoor patio seating area.  No storage, beverage manufacturing or 
taproom uses shall take place outdoors. 

 
20.2 Adequate litter receptacles shall be provided both in and outside the 

building. All litter shall be removed from the exterior areas around the 
building as required and no less frequently than once each day this 
business is open. 

 
30.0   Development Services – Alcohol Conditions 
 

30.1 The operation of the business shall comply fully with all the rules, 
regulations, and orders of the California Alcoholic Beverage Control 
Department. Failure to comply with these requirements shall constitute 
grounds for revocation of the conditional use permit. 

30.2 Employees engaged in the sale or service of alcoholic beverages for on-
site consumption shall be at least 21 years old. 

30.3 No sale or distribution of alcoholic beverages shall be made from a walk-
up window. 

30.4 No display, sale, or distribution of beer or wine, wine coolers or similar 
alcoholic beverages shall be made from an ice tub, barrel, or similar 
container. 

40.0  Police Department 

40.1 A 6-month review/inspection shall be conducted to ensure permittee's 
compliance with all operating conditions. 

 

Page 12 of 27



40.2 The applicant shall not sell any alcohol unless the applicant has an 
approved valid Alcoholic Beverage Control license. There shall be 
compliance with Business and Professions Code section 23790.5(d) a 
follows: 

a. No beer or wine shall be displayed within five feet of the cash 
register or the front door unless it is in a permanently affixed 
cooler. 

b. No display or sale of beer or wine shall be made from an ice tub. 
c. No self-illuminated advertising for beer or wine shall be located on 

buildings or windows. 
d. Employees on duty between the hours of 10 p.m. and 2 a.m. who 

sell beer or wine shall be at least 21 years of age. 
 
40.3 Within 6 months of the effective date of this determination, all personnel 

acting in the capacity of a manager, bartender, and server of the 
premises shall attend a Standardized Training for Alcohol Retailers 
(STAR) session sponsored by the Alcohol Beverage Control (ABC) and 
make arrangements for such training. 
 

40.4 No alcoholic beverages shall be consumed on any property adjacent to 
the licensed premises. No open alcoholic beverages shall be taken out 
of the business. All alcoholic beverages shall be confined within the 
business and/or patio area attached to the business. 
 

40.5 The business operator shall install and maintain at each point-of-sale an 
age verification device to prelude the sales to minors. 

 
40.6 No staff, employee, or contracted employee shall consume or be under 

the influence of an alcoholic beverage during the course of their work 
shift. 

 
40.7 No employee or agent shall solicit or accept any alcoholic or non-

alcoholic beverage from any customer while in the premises. 
 
40.8 There shall be no exterior advertising or sign of any kind or type, 

including advertising directed to the exterior from within, promoting or 
indicating the availability of alcoholic beverages. Interior displays of 
alcoholic beverages or signs which are clearly visible to the exterior shall 
constitute a violation of these conditions. 

 
40.9 Staff shall ensure that there are no sales of alcoholic beverages to 

persons under 21 years of age. 
 

40.10 The manager on duty shall be at least 21 years of age. 
 

Page 13 of 27



40.11 Applicant shall not require an admission charge or a cover charge, nor 
there a requirement to purchase a minimum number of drinks. 

 
40.12 Any alcoholic beverage sold or dispensed for consideration shall only be 

for consumption on the premises and shall be served at tables or sit-
down counters by employees of the restaurant. 

 
40.13 No end-caps, gondolas, displays, vending machines, posters, or any 

other merchandise shall be erected within 15 feet laterally of either side 
of the public access door(s) of the business. 

 
40.14 Staff shall ensure that there are no sales of alcoholic beverages to 

obviously intoxicated persons. All such persons shall be requested to 
leave. All such persons who appear to pose a safety concern by being 
intoxicated and who have no suitable escort, or who is unable to care 
for himself/herself, or in any other appropriate situation, shall be offered 
a taxi service or rideshare program at the individual's expense. If said 
individual refuses such assistance, the business owner or business 
owner's agent shall notify the Upland Police Department. 

 
40.15 The subject alcoholic beverage license shall not be exchanged for a 

public premise type license nor operated as a public premise. 
 

40.16 Cash registers/ check-out counter shall be located near the public access 
door(s). 

 
40.17 Cash registers shall be bolted or mounted to the counter so they cannot 

be easily lifted and carried out. Cash registers shall not be mounted 
outside. 

 
40.18 Lighting shall be required in all areas of public access. 

 
40.19 All exterior lighting shall be oriented inward onto the project so as not 

to interfere with adjacent residential areas or vehicular traffic on 
adjacent public streets. 

 
40.20 At a minimum, internally illuminated address signs/ numbers are 

required for each building, to the satisfaction of the Deputy Fire Marshal 
and the Chief of Police. 

 
40.21 Units with front and rear drive access shall affix or paint address 

numbering/lettering in a conspicuous location, free from plant 
obstruction, and readily visible to emergency services personnel on both 
front and rear accesses. 
 

Page 14 of 27



40.22 A digital video surveillance system is required to cover all ingress and 
egress to the premises. It is recommended to have a surveillance 
video/visual media that shall be maintained for a minimum of sixty (60) 
days and upon request, shall be accessible to law enforcement personnel 
for viewing, copying and collection purposes during regular business 
hours. The system shall be able to make license plates discernable. The 
video system shall cover all ingress and egress points of the businesses 
parking lots, the building itself: and the rear perimeter of the building. 

 
40.23 Provide UPD with contact information of person responsible for 

maintaining video equipment/system and who has access to retrieve 
and copy surveillance video. The surveillance video/visual media shall 
be remotely accessible to the Upland Police Department. 

 
40.24 There shall be no live entertainment, karaoke or disc jockey unless 

approved by the Chief of Police or his designee. 
 

40.25 There shall be no exterior advertising or sign of any kind or type, 
including advertising directed to the exterior from within, promoting or 
indicating the availability of alcoholic beverages. Interior displays of 
alcoholic beverages or signs which are clearly visible to the exterior shall 
constitute a violation of this condition. 

 
40.26 The developer, builder, contractors, sub-contractors, and/ or any other 

persons associated with this project shall strictly adhere to the Upland 
Municipal Code (UMC) Section 17.15 (et. Seq). No signage violating the 
aforementioned section is authorized other than delineated as a 
condition of the project. This will serve as the warning to anyone 
associated with this project and any violation of the aforementioned 
UMC will result in immediate issuance of a citation. Strictly adhere to 
the City of Upland’s sign ordinance (UMC 17.15 et. Seq). Any type of 
advertisement signs are strictly prohibited unless otherwise properly 
permitted by the Planning Department and it adheres to the stated Sign 
Ordinance. 

 
40.27 The management and employee of the premise shall be required to 

prevent loitering in the parking lot of the site. The management and 
employees of the licensed premise shall regularly police the area under 
its control to prevent the loitering of persons about the premises. 
 

40.28 Signs shall comply with all City of Upland sign requirements (UMC 17.15 
et seq.). No more than 50% of the total window area and clear doors 
shall bear advertising or signs of any sort. Window signs shall be placed 
and maintained in a manner so that there is a clear and unobstructed 
view of the interior of the premises from the public sidewalk or entrance 
to the premises (this applies to all windows of this location). 

Page 15 of 27



40.29 Graffiti abatement by the business owner/ licensee shall be immediate 
and ongoing on the licensed premises, but in no event shall graffiti be 
allowed unabated on the premises for more than 48 hours. Abatement 
shall take the form of removal or shall be covered/ painted over with a 
color reasonably matching the color of the existing building, structure, 
or other surface being abated. Additionally, the business owner/ licensee 
shall notify the City within 24 hours of any graffiti elsewhere on the 
property not under the business owner/ licensee’s control so that it may 
be abated by the property owner. 

 
40.30 The approved conditions shall be retained on the premises at all times 

and produced immediately upon request of the Police Department and 
the City of Upland Department Services Department. 

 
40.31 Violation of any of the aforementioned conditions, will result in 

immediate revocation of the CUP. 
 

50.0 Building Division    

50.1 Complete plans for tenant improvement, showing compliance with 2016 
Model Codes, are required for review and approval. 

50.2 If total occupant load exceeds 99, fire sprinklers are required. 

50.3  Provide occupant load for each area. 

50.4 Indicate size and occupant load or outdoor dining area. 

50.5 Provide site plan showing existing ADA parking and path of travel to 
public way. 

50.6 Show new and existing hood(s) and cooking equipment on floor plan. 

50.7 A second exit is required. 

60.0 Review/Compliance 

60.1 The Planning Commission may review the use every 90 days, every 180 
days, or on an annual basis following the date of final inspection, or as 
needed at the discretion of the Development Services Director, to 
determine whether the applicant and operators are operating the use in 
a manner that is compatible with the community. The Planning 
Commission may establish additional conditions of approval that are 
necessary to eliminate any issues that arise from the operation of the 
use that adversely impact the public health, welfare, and safety, or may 
direct staff to initiate revocation proceedings. The conditional use permit 

Page 16 of 27



may be revoked if the permittee, his agents or assignees, or 
employee(s) of the establishment, or any other person connected or 
associated with the permittee or his business establishment, or any 
person who is exercising managerial authority of the business 
establishment has: 

A. Violated any rule, regulation, or condition of approval adopted by the 
Planning Commission relating to the conditional use permit or 
contained in the Upland Municipal Code, or state or federal 
regulations. Violation of any provision of the Upland Municipal Code 
(UMC) or the conditions of approval set forth in this resolution, shall 
be deemed to constitute an infraction of the Upland Municipal Code, 
and shall be subject to the applicable fines and penalties, including 
the possibility of revocation of this permit.  

 
B. Conducted the operation permitted hereunder in a manner contrary 

to the peace, health, safety, and general welfare of the public, or in 
a manner which either generates or contributes to noise and/or 
health/sanitation nuisances, or which results in undesirable activities 
that negatively affects adjacent properties or creates an increased 
demand for public services. 
 

SECTION 5.  APPEAL.  Pursuant to Upland Municipal Code Section 17.47.040, the 
decision of the Planning Commission may be appealed to the City Council provided 
that written notice of the appeal is filed with the City Clerk within ten (10) days 
following the date the decision was rendered, unless a longer appeal period is 
specified as part of the project approval.  Failure to file a timely appeal shall constitute 
a waiver of the right of appeal, and the decision of the Planning Commission shall be 
final. 
 
SECTION 6.  INCONSISTENCY.  If any section, division, sentence, clause, phrase 
or portion of this resolution or the document in the record in support of this resolution 
is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, unenforceable, 
unconstitutional or otherwise void, that determination shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining sections, divisions, sentences, clauses, phrases of this resolution.  
 
SECTION 7.  CERTIFICATION.  The Secretary of the Planning Commission shall 
certify to the passage, approval, and adoption of this Resolution, and shall cause this 
Resolution and his certification to be entered in the Book of Resolutions of the 
Planning Commission of the City. 

 
 
_______________________________ 
Robin Aspinall, CHAIR    
 

Page 17 of 27



ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
Robert D. Dalquest, SECRETARY 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and 
adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Upland at a regular adjourned 
meeting thereof held on the 13th day of November, 2019, by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

___________________________ 
Robert D. Dalquest, SECRETARY 

Page 18 of 27



Exhibit B 

Vicinity Map 

Page 19 of 27



EXHIBIT B 
Vicinity Map 

La Tapatia 

152 W Foothill Blvd 

Page 20 of 27



Exhibit C  

Photographs of Restaurant 

Page 21 of 27



Existing Site Photos 

Page 22 of 27



 

Proposed Upland La Tapatia 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23 of 27



 

Existing La Tapatia Fontana (Arrow Location) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24 of 27



 

Existing La Tapatia Fontana (Baseline Location) 

 

 

Page 25 of 27



 

 

Exhibit D  

Parking Analysis 

 

Page 26 of 27



Parking Summary/ Analysis 

Page 27 of 27



PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 
ITEM NO. 2 

DATE:  NOVEMBER 13, 2019 

TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: ROBERT D. DALQUEST, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 

PREPARED BY:  JOSHUA WINTER, ASSOCIATE PLANNER 

SUBJECT: LOCAL REGISTER (LR-19-01) TO DESIGNATE 111 W. 17TH 
STREET (APN: 1044-351-21) TO THE LOCAL REGISTER OF 
HISTORIC PLACES. 

REQUESTED ACTION 

The applicant, Matthew Saul, is seeking to designate 111 W. 17th Street (APN: 1044-
351-21) to the local register of historic places. (See Exhibit A – Draft Resolution)(See
Exhibit B – Vicinity Map)

GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION AND ZONING DISTRICT 

The property is located within the Single-Family Residential Low (0-4 du/ac, SFR-L) 
General Plan Designation (See Exhibit C – General Plan Designation) and Single-
Family Residential RS-20,000 (RS-20) Zone (See Exhibit D – Zoning).  The proposal 
to place the cultural resource onto the local register implements GP Policy CC-9.2 
National, California, and Upland Registers. “Pursue eligibility and listing of qualified 
resources, including historic districts and individual resources, under the appropriate 
register(s).”  The property is currently on the Historic Resources Survey, and is 
eligible to be on the Local Register.  The proposed designation also implements GP 
Policy CC-9.7 “Historic Resource Property Maintenance. “Actively pursue maintenance 
and upkeep of historic resources to avoid the need for major rehabilitation and to 
reduce the risks of demolition, loss through fire or neglect, or impacts from natural 
disasters.” The designation will qualify the property for the Mills Act, which will 
provide lower property taxes in exchange for the property owner’s commitment to a 

Page 1 of 30



Planning Commission Staff Report 
LR-19-01, 111 W. 17th St. 

November 13, 2019 
Page 2 of 4 

schedule of repair and maintenance intended to preserve the home’s structural and 
historic integrity.      

ANALYSIS 

Background 

The property, built in circa 1895, was originally surveyed by the City if Upland in 
September of 1990.  At the time of the survey, the property was found to be 
historically significant, and was designated with a Status Code of 4.  To put this into 
context, each cultural resource, at the time of review and creation of a Primary 
Record, is assigned a National Register of Historic Places Eligibility Status Code.  The 
status ranges from 1-6, with 1 being Cultural Resources listed on the National 
Register (Euclid Avenue being an example) and a 6, which means the resource is 
ineligible for the Local/State/National Registry.  The designation of a 4 means that 
this property is potentially eligible for the National Register, and is therefore eligible 
for the Local Register.  (Please see Exhibit E – California Department of Parks and 
Recreation Historic Resources Primary Record)   

Local Register 

In order for the home to be designated to the Local Register, the Planning 
Commission must find that the historic resource meets one or more of the seven 
Criteria as stated in the Upland Municipal Code Section 17.26.100(F) (See Exhibit F).  
The property shows consistency with Criteria 1 and 2 of the required Criteria, as 
discussed below: 

1. It embodies distinguishing architectural characteristics, valuable to the
study of a period, style, method of construction, or the use of indigenous
materials or craftsmanship.

a. The house is notable for its Victorian Era Italianate influence.  The house
is capped by a cross gable roof, sheathed in clapboard, and is on a
cobble stone foundation.  A two-story, three-sided bay rises up on the
east elevation beneath a pent roof.  Stickwork and spandrel panels detail
the double-hung sash windows in the bay.  An open porch, capped by a
pent roof, occupies the southeast corner of the structure.  The house
includes multiple double hung windows with shutters topped by lintels.
(See Exhibit G – Property Photographs)

2. It exemplifies, symbolizes, or manifests elements of the cultural, social,
economic, political, or architectural history of the city.

The house manifests elements of the architectural history of the City in 
that it is suspected that the house was moved from the corner of Euclid 

Page 2 of 30



Planning Commission Staff Report 
LR-19-01, 111 W. 17th St. 

November 13, 2019 
Page 3 of 4 

Ave and 17th Street, making it one of the first homes on Euclid Avenue. 
Therefore the house is notable for its association with the development 
of Euclid Avenue.  

Benefits of Placement on the Local Register 

The benefit of placement on the local register, is that the property is eligible for the 
Mills Act.  The Mills act is an agreement between the City of Upland, County of San 
Bernardino and Property Owner intended to assist property owners with the 
maintenance and repair of Cultural Resources in exchange for a reduction in property 
taxes.   

Upland Heritage Support 

Upland Heritage has provided a letter of support for placing this property on the Local 
Register.  (See Exhibit H – Upland Heritage Letter of Support) 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 

The activity consists of placing the property on the Local Register for Cultural 
Resources, and involves no modifications or expansions to the property.  Listing of 
the property on the local registry will not result in changes or impacts to the 
environment.  As such, the project is Categorically Exempt from environmental 
proceedings pursuant to Article 5, Section 15061(b)(3), The activity is covered by 
the common sense exemption that The CEQA Guidelines apply only to projects which 
have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can 
be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may 
have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to The CEQA 
Guidelines. 

Findings for Approval 

In order to approve Local Register 19-01, the Planning Commission is required to 
make findings related to the circumstances of the project.  Section 2 of the Draft 
Resolution contains recommended findings for the Planning Commission’s 
consideration.  

Conditions of Approval 

The project does not involve any modifications to the property, therefore, no 
conditions of approval are proposed for this project.  

Recommendation 

• Find that the project is Categorically Exempt from environmental proceedings
pursuant to Article 5, Section 15061(b)(3), The activity is covered by the

Page 3 of 30



Planning Commission Staff Report 
LR-19-01, 111 W. 17th St. 

November 13, 2019 
Page 4 of 4 

 
common sense exemption that The CEQA Guidelines apply only to projects 
which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. 

 
• Move to adopt a Resolution approving Local Register 19-01, as set forth in the 

Draft Resolution dated November 13, 2019. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Exhibit A: Draft Resolution  
Exhibit B: Vicinity Map  
Exhibit C: General Plan Designation 
Exhibit D:  Zoning Designation  
Exhibit E: California Department of Parks and Recreation Historic Resources 

Record 
Exhibit F: Copy of Section 17.26.100(F) of the UMC 
Exhibit G: Property Photographs  
Exhibit H: Upland Heritage Support Letter 

Page 4 of 30



 

 

Exhibit A  

Draft Resolution 

 

Page 5 of 30



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
UPLAND APPROVING LOCAL REGISTER (LR-19-01) 
TO DESIGNATE 111 W. 17TH STREET (APN:1044-351-21) TO 
THE LOCAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES.   

THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF UPLAND DOES HEREBY FIND, 
ORDER, AND RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:  

SECTION 1.  RECITALS. 

A. The Applicant, Matthew Saul, is seeking to designate 111 W. 17th Street (APN:
1044-351-21) to the local register of historic places.

B. The property is located within the Single-Family Residential Low (0-4 du/ac,
SFR-L) General Plan Designation and Single-Family Residential RS-20,000
(RS-20) zone.

C. Upland Municipal Code Section 17.26.100(C) provides that the Planning
Commission shall serve as the review authority for Local Register Applications.

D. Upland Municipal Code Section 17.26.100(F) provides that the Planning
Commission may approve the designation of a cultural resource to the Local
Register if it finds that the cultural resource meets one or more of the required
criteria.  The Planning Commission made findings by resolution, as hereinafter
provided, that the evidence presented shows that the findings referenced in
Section 2 of this Resolution can be made.

E. On November 13, 2019 at 6:30 p.m., the Planning Commission conducted a
public hearing for Local Register No. 19-01, after providing notice to the public
in the manner and for the time required by law, and heard and considered both
oral and written evidence.

SECTION 2. FINDINGS.  The Planning Commission hereby makes the following 
findings and determinations in connection with the approval of the Project:   

A. Recitals A through E of Section 1, above, are true and correct.

B. The activity consists of placing the property on the Local Register of Designated
Cultural Resources, and involves no modifications or expansions to the
property.  Listing of the property on the Local Registry will not result in changes
or impacts to the environment.  As such, the project is Categorically Exempt
from environmental proceedings pursuant to Article 5, Section 15061(b)(3),
The activity is covered by the common sense exemption that The CEQA
Guidelines apply only to projects which have the potential for causing a
significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that

Page 6 of 30



Planning Commission Resolution 
LR-19-01 

November 13, 2019 
Page 2 of 4 

 
there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect 
on the environment, the activity is not subject to The CEQA Guidelines.  
 

C. The property is located within the Single-Family Residential Low (0-4 du/ac, 
SFR-L) General Plan Designation (See Exhibit C – General Plan Designation) 
and Single-Family Residential RS-20,000 (RS-20) Zone (See Exhibit D – 
Zoning).  The proposal to place the cultural resource onto the local register 
implements GP Policy CC-9.2 National, California, and Upland Registers. 
“Pursue eligibility and listing of qualified resources, including historic districts 
and individual resources, under the appropriate register(s).”  The property is 
currently on the Historic Resources Survey, and is eligible to be on the Local 
Register.  The proposed designation also implements GP Policy CC-9.7 “Historic 
Resource Property Maintenance. “Actively pursue maintenance and upkeep of 
historic resources to avoid the need for major rehabilitation and to reduce the 
risks of demolition, loss through fire or neglect, or impacts from natural 
disasters.” The designation will qualify the property for the Mills Act, which will 
provide lower property taxes in exchange for the property owner’s 
commitment to a schedule of repair and maintenance intended to preserve the 
home’s structural and historic integrity.       
 

D. Upland Municipal Code Section 17.26.100(F) requires the Planning 
Commission, before it may approve designation of a cultural resource to the 
Local Register, must find that the historic resource meets one or more of the 
required designation criteria as stated in the Upland Municipal Code.  The 
project meets two of the possible seven criteria for designation of a cultural 
resource to the Local Register, as follows. 
 

1. Finding: It embodies distinguishing architectural characteristics, valuable 
to the study of a period, style, method of construction, or the use of 
indigenous materials or craftsmanship. 
 
Evidence: The house is notable for its Victorian Era Italianate influence.  
The house is capped by a cross gable roof, sheathed in clapboard, and on 
a cobble stone foundation.  A two-story, three-sided bay rises up on the 
east elevation beneath a pent roof.  Stickwork and spandrel panels detail 
the double-hung sash windows in the bay.  An open porch, capped by a 
pent roof, occupies the southeast corner of the structure.  The house 
includes multiple double hung windows with shutters topped by lintels. 

  
2. Finding: It exemplifies, symbolizes, or manifests elements of the cultural, 

social, economic, political, or architectural history of the city. 
 
Evidence: The house manifests elements of the architectural history of the 
City in that it is suspected that the house was moved from the corner of 
Euclid Ave and 17th Street, making it one of the first homes on Euclid 

Page 7 of 30



Planning Commission Resolution 
LR-19-01 

November 13, 2019 
Page 3 of 4 

 
Avenue. Therefore the house is notable for its association with the 
development of Euclid Avenue.  

 
SECTION 3.  APPEAL.  Pursuant to Upland Municipal Code Section 17.47.040, the 
decision of the Planning Commission may be appealed to the City Council provided 
that written notice of the appeal is filed with the City Clerk within ten (10) days 
following the date the decision was rendered, unless a longer appeal period is 
specified as part of the project approval.  Failure to file a timely appeal shall constitute 
a waiver of the right of appeal, and the decision of the Planning Commission shall be 
final. 
 
SECTION 4.  INCONSISTENCY.  If any section, division, sentence, clause, phrase 
or portion of this resolution or the document in the record in support of this resolution 
is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, unenforceable, 
unconstitutional or otherwise void, that determination shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining sections, divisions, sentences, clauses, phrases of this resolution. 
 
SECTION 5.  CERTIFICATION.  The Secretary of the Planning Commission shall 
certify to the passage, approval, and adoption of this Resolution, and shall cause this 
Resolution and his certification to be entered in the Book of Resolutions of the 
Planning Commission of the City. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Robin Aspinall, CHAIR    
 
 
  

Page 8 of 30



Planning Commission Resolution 
LR-19-01 

November 13, 2019 
Page 4 of 4 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 

_________________________________ 
Robert D. Dalquest, SECRETARY 
 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and 
adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Upland at a regular adjourned 
meeting thereof held on the 13th day of November, 2019, by the following vote: 

AYES:     

NAYS:   

ABSENT:    

ABSTAIN:    

________________________________ 
Robert D. Dalquest, SECRETARY 

 
 
 
 

Page 9 of 30



 

 

Exhibit B 

Vicinity Map 

 

Page 10 of 30



Exhibit B – Vicinity Map 

Page 11 of 30



 

 

Exhibit C  

General Plan Designation 

 

Page 12 of 30



Exhibit C – General Plan – LR-19-01 

General Plan 

Page 13 of 30



 

 

Exhibit D  

Zoning Designation 

 

Page 14 of 30



Exhibit D – Zoning – LR-19-01 

Zoning 

Page 15 of 30



 

 

Exhibit E  

California Department of Parks and             

Recreation Historic Resources Record 

 

Page 16 of 30



Page 17 of 30



Page 18 of 30



Page 19 of 30



Page 20 of 30



Page 21 of 30



 

 

Exhibit F  

Copy of Section 17.26.100 (F) of the UMC 

 

Page 22 of 30



Exhibit F – LR-19-01 
UMC 17.26.100 Permit Review Procedures for Designation or Removal of a Cultural Resource 
or Historic District 

F. Criteria for Designation of a Cultural Resource. The Planning Commission may approve
the designation of a cultural resource to the Local Register if it finds the cultural resource meets one
or more of the following criteria:

1. It embodies distinguishing architectural characteristics, valuable to the study of a period,
style, method of construction, or the use of indigenous materials or craftsmanship.
2. It exemplifies, symbolizes, or manifests elements of the cultural, social, economic,
political, or architectural history of the city.
3. It is identified with historic persons or with important events in local, state, or national
history.
4. It is representative of the work or product of a notable builder, designer, or architect.
5. Its unique location or singular physical characteristics represent an established and
familiar visual feature of a neighborhood.
6. It contributes to the continuity or character of a visually or thematically cohesive street,
neighborhood, or area.
7. It has integrity as a natural or manmade environment that strongly contributes to the
well-being of the people of the community.

Page 23 of 30



 

 

Exhibit G  

Property Photographs 

 

Page 24 of 30



Page 25 of 30



 

Page 26 of 30



 

Page 27 of 30



 

Page 28 of 30



 

 

Exhibit H 

Upland Heritage Support Letter 

 

Page 29 of 30



Page 30 of 30


	AGENDA
	MINUTES OF 9/25/19
	ITEM 1. CUP-19-06 LA TAPATIA
	1A. Draft Resolution
	1B. Vicinity Map
	1C. Photographs of Restaurant
	1D. Parking Analysis

	ITEM 2. LR-19-01 111 W. 17TH STREET
	2A. Draft Resolution
	2B. Vicinity Map
	2C. General Plan Designation
	2D. Zoning Designation
	2E. California Department of Parks and Recreation Historic Resources Record
	2F. Copy of UMC Section 17.26.100 (F)
	2G. Property Photographs
	2H. Upland Heritage Support Letter




